
        TOWN OF KITTERY 
      200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 
Telephone: (207) 475-1329 Fax: (207) 439-6806 
                                    
 
 
 

June 11, 2018                    Council Chambers 
Kittery Town Council 

Regular Meeting 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Introductory 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4. Roll Call   
 
5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption 
 
6. Town Manager’s Report   
 

 7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes – 5/14/18 Regular Meeting 
 

 8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board   
 
 9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town consultants or 
 requested officials.  

 
a. (060118-1) The Kittery Town council moves to recognize John Brosnihan for his 17 years of 

dedicated service as a Sergeant in the Kittery Police Department.  
 

b. (060118-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to recognize Janice Grady for 35 years of 
dedicated service as the Kittery Recreation Director. 

   
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

a. (060118-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing in accordance with Sec. 
6.06 (3) of the Kittery Town Charter and adopts the 2018-19 Municipal, Adult Education, 
Capital Improvement, and Enterprise Fund budgets. 

b. (060118-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing to receive comments on 
Town Meeting Articles 2 through 9 for the June 12th Election.   

c. (060118-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing and hereby adopts an 
Amendment to Appendix A – Sewer Service Rates. 

d. (060118-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing and hereby ordains an 
Amendment to Title 13- Rates and Charges.  

e. (060118-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on an application from 
York Food Group, LLC. for a Victualers license for Burrito Betty’s Food Truck at 345 US Route 
in Kittery. 

 

 



 

f. (060118-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on an application from 
Starbucks Corporation for a Victualers license for Starbucks Coffee store #7907 at 306 US 
Route 1 in Kittery. 

11. DISCUSSION 
 a.  Discussion by members of the public (three minutes per person)  
 b.  Response to public comment directed to a particular Councilor 
 c.  Chairperson’s response to public comments 
 

12.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
   
13. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Donations/gifts received for Council disposition. 

(060118-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept donation in the amount of $200 from 
David Leavitt to be deposited into account #2063-43600 KCC Fundraising. 

b.  (060118-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the disbursement warrants. 

c. (060118-11) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a one-day extension of the service 
area of the premises externally on the current liquor license for Sonmat Inc., 7 Wallingford 
Square, from 9:00am – 10:00pm for the Kittery Block Party on June 16, 2018.  

d. (060118-12) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint recommended citizen representatives 
to the Library Building Committee. 

e. (060118-13) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint recommended citizen representatives 
to the Taylor Building Committee. 

f. (060118-14) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept the resignation of David Lincoln from 
the Economic Development Committee. 

g. (060118-15) The Kittery Town Council moves to release $4,000 from the Wetlands 
Preservation Fee fund for the Fort Foster mapping of invasive species. 

h. (060118-16) The Kittery Town Council Moves to approve an easement for Central Maine 
Power for Map 10 Lot 5 for a utility pole and guywires associated with the Whipple Road 
project. 

i. (060118-17) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule their summer meetings for July 23rd 
and August 27th. 

 
14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 

 
15.   COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 
 

a.  Communications from the Chairperson  
b.  Committee Reports  

 
16.  EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
17.   ADJOURNMENT     
  
       
 
Posted:  June 07, 2018 



Town Manager’s Report to the Town Council 
June 11, 2018 

1. Quarterly Annual Goals Update – Enclosed please find the quarterly annual goals report for
the Town Council and the Town Manager.

2. Taxpayer Relief Programs – The staff are in the process of setting up the new taxpayer
programs adopted by the Council at your May 30, 2018 meeting.  We are developing guides,
flyers, and applications, as well as finalizing the review and abatement processes.  In conjunction
with this effort, we are reviewing all of the accounts in foreclosure for unpaid taxes and will
reach out to these taxpayers with information about their options under the new ordinance.

3. Variable Speed Radars – We are currently working with CMP to amend the existing pole
agreement (for the State Road flags) to allow for the installation of the variable speed radar
signs.  Once that is finalized, we will be able to install the units.

4. Route 236 Traffic – The Request For Proposals for the traffic safety corridor study has been
issued by KACTS.  As you may recall this study will evaluate the corridor road improvements to
make the road safer. The study area is from Stevenson Road to Beech Road.  Proposals are due
June 22nd.

5. Assistant Recreation Director Todd Henley – Please help me in congratulating Todd Henley
on his promotion to Assistant Recreation Director/Assistant General Manager.  Todd has ten
years of service with the Town and the department.  He was one of a number of key staff in the
transition effort to the new KCC building.  He has successfully overseen the afterschool
programs, senior programs, and the development of KCC marketing materials.

Todd will be serving in a critical role within the department and brings a combination of years of
experience and a shared vision for the future of the KCC to his new role.   His appointment is
effective June 25, 2018.

Upcoming Dates:
 Election/Town Meeting Secret Ballot – June 12th 8AM to 8PM, Kittery Community Center
 Janice Grady’s Retirement Party – June 13th 6pm
 Kittery Block Party – June 16th, 10AM to 4PM, Foreside

Respectfully Submitted, 

Kendra Amaral 
Town Manager 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
Office of the Town Manager 

200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
kamaral@kitteryme.org  



TOWN COUNCIL GOALS  

2018 

1ST QUARTER REPORT 

 
1. Work together respectfully toward consensus, capitalizing on our experiences and diversity.  

2. Continue to work on sharing services with neighboring towns.  

3. Address proposals for Charter, Ordinance, and policy changes for improving efficiency and 
effectiveness of Town operations, including:  

 Title 2 – Personnel 
 Title 4 – Boards and Commissions 
 Title 5 – Business Licenses and Regulations 
 Title 6 – Animals 
 Title 13 – Public Services – Complete 
 Proposed – Title 15 – Ethics – In process 
 Title 16 – Land Use – In process 

4. Support the Town Manager to achieve greater economy & effectiveness in the delivery of 
services. – On going 

5. Adopt a budget that is progressive, responsible, and visionary – moving the community forward. 
– In process 

6. Conduct quarterly review of Council and Manager progress on annual goals. – On going 

7. Give attention to Councilor expressed items, including: 
 Impacts of Shipyard and MaineDOT on local traffic – In process 
 Senior Property Tax Circuit Breaker Program - Complete 
 Energy Efficiency Efforts – In Process 
 Rice Public Library as a Town Department – In process 
 Rice Public Library facility project - In process 
 Comp Plan adoption on the November 2018 ballot - In process 
 Foreside Study and action plan completion, and progress on action plan - In process 



TOWN MANAGER ANNUAL GOALS 
STATUS REPORT – 2018 Q1 

1      June 11, 2018 
 

2018 GOALS  STATUS  Update 
Support Long‐Term Planning and Growth Management Objectives 
Enhance the Town’s economic development activities and work with 
local and regional organizations to attract, support, and sustain 
appropriate local economic investment 

On going  New Planning Director started, brings wealth of economic 
development experience; working with developer of the Sowerby 
parcel on brownfields analysis, ongoing meetings with various 
business owners, mall road property managers and owners, and 
Foreside businesses.   

Propose and implement zoning amendments that support desired 
growth in the targeted growth areas including the Business Park, Route 
1, Route 1 Bypass 

In 
process 

Mixed Use Neighborhood rezone (Business Park) scheduled for 
Planning Board public hearing on June 14th.  Inclusionary Housing 
working group focusing on Route 1 mall area.  RFP for consultant to 
assist with Title 16 recodification drafted. 

Develop and begin to implementation of an action plan associated with 
the Foreside Land Use, Parking, and Transportation Study 
 

In 
process 

Action plan drafted, initial key actions include addressing parking 
perception issues, parking time limits in Foreside area, and master 
planning the State Road portion of the project area. 

Support town process to adopt the 2015‐2025 Updated Comprehensive 
Plan 

In 
process 

Public hearing completed by CPUC.  Will be presented to Council in 
summer to place on the ballot for November. 

Enhance Financial Stability 
Produce a 2019 budget that seeks to maintain a stable tax rate, 
and that is adequately justifiable in comparison to appropriate 
economic indicators and comparable communities. 
 
 

In 
process 

Worked with School Department to manage overall cost increases 
in association with tax rate and economic indicators.  Awaiting 
Council adoption of FY19 budget. 

Develop a policy to manage tax liens in a timely manner and 
address tax liens from prior years. 
 

In 
process 

Worked with Council to develop ordinance to provide taxpayer 
relief options; proposed tax collection policy.  Council approved 
ordinance and policy on May 30th.  Review of foreclosure property 
in process; presentation to Council in fall on property disposition. 

Develop options to resolve the current Sewer Enterprise Fund 
challenges and implement as guided by Council. 
 

In 
process 

Analysis completed.  Rate model has been developed and options 
proposed to Council.  Council conducted two workshops and will 
be considering rate and policy revisions in June. 

Develop a Facility Master Plan to inform the Capital Improvement 
planning. 
 

In 
process 

Facility Maintenance Supervisor is completing the building 
inventory process including creating an inventory of all systems 
(roofs, MEP systems, building envelopes) with details on useful life 
remaining and cost to replace. 

 



TOWN MANAGER ANNUAL GOALS 
STATUS REPORT – 2018 Q1 

2      June 11, 2018 
 

Resolve the matter of the Library becoming a Town department, 
resolve the Taylor Building disposition, and advance the Library 
renovation and expansion project efforts. 
 

In 
process 

Library Transition committee reviewing documentation and 
developing recommendations.  Taylor and Library Building 
committees being filled and expected to begin work this summer. 

Continue to Improve Organizational Efficiency 
Continue to propose and implement Charter, Ordinance, and Rule 
changes that improve efficiency and effectiveness of town 
operations. 

o Title 2 – Personnel 
o Title 4 – Boards and Commissions 
o Title 5 – Business Licenses and Regulations 
o Title 6 – Animals 
o Title 13 – Public Services 

. 

     

Prioritize employee safety and reduction of workers compensation 
costs, take steps to begin reducing the town’s current experience 
modification factor of 1.23.  
 

On going  Safety Committee is meeting regularly.  Committee releases 
quarterly safety advisories and reviews claims.  Mod rate for 
coming year is projected at 1.17 which is the result of a 
combination of older claims dropping off and fewer/less severe 
newer claims. 

Increase Public Awareness and Engagement 
Continue to improve town generated communications and ensure 
they are concise, accurate, and accessible for a variety of 
audiences 
 

On going  Adjusted format and approach to public communications; KCC 
rebranding and redesign of website is underway.  Issuing more 
“news bulletins” to the public about happenings in town 
government.   

Propose revisions to Title 4 that enhance public interest in 
volunteering to serve on boards, commissions and committees. 
 

In 
process 

Increased public notification and outreach for volunteers for 
Planning Board and Board of Appeals. 

 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

1 

 1 

Kittery Town Council 2 
May 14, 2018 3 

Regular Meeting – 6 p.m. 4 
Council Chambers 5 

 6 
1. Call to order:  Chairperson Lemont called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 7 
 8 
2. Introductory:  Chairperson Lemont read the introductory. 9 
 10 
3. Pledge of Allegiance:    Chairperson Lemont led all present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 11 
 12 
4. Roll call:   Answering the roll were Councilors Frank Dennett, Jeffrey Pelletier, Jeffrey Thomson, 13 
Matthew Brock, Gary Beers, Vice-Chairperson Charles Denault and Chairperson Kenneth Lemont. 14 
 15 
5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption:   16 
 17 
COUNCILOR DENNETT MOVED, DUE TO SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, TO SUSPEND COUNCIL 18 
RULES, PARTICULARLY SECTION ONE, TO AMEND THE START TIME FOR COUNCIL 19 
PROCEEDINGS FROM 6:00 P.M. TO 5:00 P.M., SECONDED BY COUNCILOR PELLETIER.  ROLL 20 
CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR, MOTION CARRIES. 21 
 22 
Councilor Dennett asked if the Chairperson was going to move an amendment? 23 
 24 
Chairperson Lemont said he would move the public hearings, #10 a-c, to 6:00 p.m.   He thanked his 25 
fellow Councilors for being available earlier this evening so that any one who chooses to do so may 26 
attend the visiting hours for Milton Hall, long-time, dedicated citizen of the community. 27 
 28 
Chairperson Lemont asked if there were any other adjustments and, seeing none, cast one vote to 29 
accept the agenda as amended. 30 
 31 
6. Town Manager’s Report:      none 32 
7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes:    none 33 
8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board:  none 34 
 35 
9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town consultants 36 
or requested officials. 37 
 38 
 (050218-1)  The Kittery Town Council moves to receive a presentation from the Town Manager 39 
on the Municipal Budget. 40 
 41 
Town Manager Amaral said she would go through the details of the proposed FY’19 budget, but the 42 
actual budget submitted, with line items, is in the Council’s packets.  She said she will do an overview 43 
and first spoke to goals which are adopted every year for both the Town Council and the Town 44 
Manager.  She said her goal is to present a strictly balanced budget, justifiable and appropriate to 45 
include the stabilization of the tax rate.  She said the annual goals do not include the School Dept. but 46 
support long-term planning and growth management objectives, sewer enhancement, financial stability 47 
for the library and continue to improve the organization’s efficiency, increase public awareness and 48 
advance ongoing initiatives. 49 
 50 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

2 

 51 
Town Manager Amaral said she met with Supt. Waddell and talked about the increase on the mill rate.  52 
She said they have to develop budgets mindful as to what it does to our taxpayers.  She said the mill 53 
rate is the figure she needs to be at and the Superintendent understood.  She said valuation is 54 
extremely important to maintain an affordable and sustainable tax rate. 55 
 56 
Town Manager Amaral said she went with Southern York communities with similar services and our 57 
budget is comparable to theirs.   She said they are all doing the same things regarding dollar value.  58 
She was asked why is the Wells tax rate so low? She replied because their valuation is higher and 59 
when the valuation is higher, the tax rate goes down.  She said the property values’ projected increase 60 
is $12 million dollars.  She said vacant land increased in value but commercial use is on the rise in 61 
Kittery and residential dropped in the last year.   62 
 63 
Town Manager Amaral said the value they assess on taxes on 89% they will have to adjust within the 64 
next coming year.  She said they need appropriate economic development in order to reduce the 65 
burden on the taxpayers.  She said that only 71% of the properties are on the market in Kittery, and the 66 
price goes through the roof.   She said they need to address that and make it affordable so people can 67 
stay here.  She said she will not be able to do it in this kind of growing home value. 68 
 69 
Town Manager Amaral said they need to offset the TIF districts and removed money from the Public 70 
Safety Impact Fund to address this, which historically has been over-budget.  She said other factors 71 
include: they have been investing in local roads and there is a $200,000 increase in roads; advance on-72 
call program with the Fire Dept. and developing options to resolve the Sewer Enterprise Fund 73 
challenges.   She said $100,000 has been deducted from the CIP budget to start the design for the 74 
library. 75 
 76 
Town Manager Amaral said that 65% of the municipal revenue comes from property taxes and they 77 
need more non-property tax revenue coming to support the FY’19 budget.  She showed the breakdown 78 
of revenue allocated from property taxes.  She said there is a 9.58% increase in non-property tax 79 
revenues. She said the Rec. Dept. programs are in demand and the revenue is $107,645. 80 
 81 
Town Manager Amaral said the interest coming in, due to the new investment policy, is $19,000.  She 82 
said non-recurring funds are being proposed, but to do so judiciously and they are trying to manage 83 
expenditures for FY19.   84 
 85 
Town Manager Amaral said there is a growing balance in their Channel 22 PEG Fund, nearly one half-86 
million dollars.  She said they overstated the tax rate and let the money continue to grow.  She said the 87 
money they get off of Comcast cable.  She said they have added a 2 ½ % cap on their bills.  She said 88 
the recording funds are going into another fund and growing.  She said she has been talking with 89 
Randy to see what they can do with that.  She said they did adopt a policy to keep $200,000 in the fund 90 
to keep up with the systems and everything they need. 91 
 92 
Town Manager Amaral said they are taking $50,000 from the Kittery Port Authority Facilities Reserve 93 
Acct. and will be funding that {project} in a Warrant Article. 94 
 95 
Town Manager Amaral showed Council a chart on allocated capital expenses and explained that FY’19 96 
reflects two years’ worth of COLA in the wages line and limited increases. She said shared expenses 97 
were put into one budget.  She said medical, retirement, insurance, and retired employee benefits were 98 
taken out of individual budgets.   She said $319,813 increase is non-discretionary as she has to have 99 
coverage for employees.  She said the biggest budget increase of $115,130 for medical includes 100 
changes in the plan.  She said there hasn’t been a change in personnel, just additional hours for 2 staff. 101 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

3 

Town Manager Amaral said the Retired Employees line increased to $77,459; Administration $57,191 102 
and Debt & Interest decreased to $21,127.  She said there were no changes to staff in the Sewer Dept. 103 
but Building & Grounds and Miscellaneous Expenses decreased to $47,008.    104 
 105 
Town Manager Amaral said with regard to the TIF Reserve Acct., the money can only be used for those 106 
properties within the TIF district.  She said that the online permitting program is up and running and 107 
Planning and Code Enforcement saw an increase $47,487.  She said the Assistant Town Planner role 108 
will be vacant ($30,604) and they have contracted for Assessing Services – an increase of $1,671. 109 
 110 
Town Manager Amaral said they are working on recodification for Title 16 to include the Mall Road 111 
corridor redevelopment.  She said there is an increase in Fire Dept. $28,004 for a new on-call program 112 
which would make sure that we have sufficient people able to respond during weeks or days where it is 113 
difficult to get firefighters.  She said the line for the Police Dept., has increased exponentially to 114 
$110,513 and they have historically spent more money in overtime.  She said the DEA overtime will be 115 
decreasing as the town will be out of the arrangement in September.  She said the outside entities are 116 
reflected only for those events not requested by town entities.  117 
 118 
Town Manager Amaral said the Public Works. Dept. shows an increase to $93,323 – which includes 119 
additional seasonal employees, maintenance and monitoring enforcement at Fort Foster.  She said the 120 
seasonal position has been filed and the impact on this budget is $16,239 which includes benefits.  She 121 
said under Resource Recovery, there has been an increase in recyclable waste to $11,000 and she 122 
indicated that on the “Revenue vs. Expenses” chart as not meeting expenses. 123 
 124 
Town Manager Amaral said the Kittery Community Center reflects an increase of $28,966 which is 125 
anticipated due to Janice Grady’s retirement.  She said the KCC is doing well with revenue meeting 126 
expenses.    127 
 128 
Town Manager said there is a $725 decrease in the Harbormaster/Kittery Port Authority line items.  She 129 
said she is reversing her position and it is not appropriate for one person to be at the facility collecting 130 
fees and making sure people are following the rules 24/7.   She said they are increasing staffing with 131 
the Assistant Harbor Master and a dock master to help out when needed.  She said $50,000 will be 132 
received from the United States to replace the Government Street pier. 133 
 134 
Town Manager Amaral said they will be having a workshop to talk about Sewer rates but she has put in 135 
the current rates, but they will be seeing a $448,998 deficit in this coming year for the Enterprise Fund. 136 
 137 
Town Manager Amaral showed the “Wrap Up” and said the property tax levy increase is $351,662 and 138 
the $142,975 is below LD-1 limit and $16.99 is the projected mill rate and will go down if the valuation 139 
comes in higher.  She said the projected annual increase is $161, based on the average home 140 
valuation or 2.9%. 141 
 142 
Town Manager Amaral thanked the Finance Director and Department Heads, who put a lot of work into 143 
this proposed budget.  She said she has gone through every line before Council and would be happy to 144 
answer questions. 145 
 146 
Chairperson Lemont thanked the Town Manager and asked if there were any questions from Council. 147 
 148 
Vice-Chairperson Denault said he had a question regarding the Harbor Master, through the Chair.  He 149 
said he understood what happened and what is going on but, based on longevity and retirement from 150 
the Police Dept. and working as the Harbor Master, he wanted to know how did the Town Manager 151 
arrive at the salary grade and what could they anticipate with longevity with someone when retirement 152 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

4 

kicks in, because it is his understanding that when someone retires, that wipes out the years with the 153 
town.   154 
 155 
Town Manager Amaral replied that is not how the ordinance is written. 156 
 157 
Vice-Chairperson Denault said the Town Manager, through negotiations had a figure, and he can deal 158 
with that.  He said she addressed that anyway, right? 159 
 160 
Town Manager Amaral replied yes. 161 
 162 
Vice-Chairperson Denault said back in the day, when he got computers through Dell and HP, they 163 
came with the Gold Series warranty, which was built into the Government price. He said the Dell onsite 164 
support was free for the Gold users.   He said he sees $17,000 and wanted to know if that was still in 165 
effect and wouldn’t that have dropped every two years, a lower rate, a lower rate, than back up to a 166 
higher rate to replace the computers? 167 
 168 
Town Manager Amaral replied the $12,000, which makes up the majority, is for the annual service 169 
contract for the online permitting system and the remainder is not just fixing computers but also is for 170 
Tech Support.  She said when they have new accounts, they have to set up the computers and they 171 
need to address those issues, so it is more Technical Support than repairing the machines. 172 
 173 
Vice-Chairperson Denault said he did not realize that $12,000 out of $17,000 was earmarked for 174 
software, so $7,000 is reasonable.  He wanted to know if the rest of the computers still came out of the 175 
CIP account? 176 
 177 
Town Manager Amaral responded that when they replace the computer systems, they do. 178 
 179 
Vice-Chairperson Denault asked then it is totally separate? 180 
 181 
Town Manager Amaral answered yes, we do. 182 
 183 
Councilor Thomson said this is not a question and asked if Council would entertain a suggestion for the 184 
body, conveyed through the Chair, to the Town Manager, that in her budget presentation, she indicated 185 
a conservative valuation figure of $16.99.  He said he would like to make one adjustment and would like 186 
Council consensus.  He said Council has the ability to control one individual’s salary in this town.   He 187 
said he believes this individual is woefully underpaid in the profession she is in and the work she has 188 
been performing.  189 
 190 
Councilor Thomson said his suggestion is he would like to increase line item 66037, Council Expenses, 191 
from $350 to $15,350 to enable this body to have some leeway when we adjust that employee’s salary 192 
in the Fall. 193 
 194 
Chairperson Lemont asked Councilor Thomson what page is that on? 195 
 196 
Councilor Thomson replied page 31. 197 
 198 
Chairperson Lemont asked if Council was amendable to that? 199 
 200 
Vice-Chairperson Denault said he was in. 201 
 202 
Chairperson Lemont asked Councilor Thomson if he would like to make a motion. 203 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

5 

 204 
Councilor Thomson replied he did not know if he can really do that. 205 
 206 
Town Manager Amaral said they would still need to have a public hearing. 207 
 208 
Councilor Thomson suggested and would like Council consensus to increase that line item and that 209 
amount be added to the budget. 210 
 211 
Chairperson Lemont said he concurred. 212 
 213 
Councilor Dennett asked what line item? 214 
 215 
Councilor Thomson replied 66037. 216 
 217 
Councilor Dennett wanted to know, through the Chair, how much is this being increased by? 218 
 219 
Councilor Thomson responded $15,000 and currently stands at $350.  He said there may be a better 220 
place to put in that sum, but this way, we can utilize it if we so choose. 221 
 222 
Councilor Brock asked for clarification, through the Chair, that this provides flexibility for Council to 223 
increase the Town Manager’s salary? 224 
 225 
Councilor Thomson responded yes. 226 
 227 
Councilor Pelletier said he is fine with setting aside that amount, which is no different than what our 228 
other contractors and the School Dept. does for things, for discussion.  He said it would provide 229 
flexibility and they do not have to use the entire amount.  He said this is simply a place holder and they 230 
can talk about an actual amount in the future. 231 
 232 
Councilor Brock concurred. 233 
 234 
Councilor Dennett said no. 235 
 236 
Chairperson Lemont said to the Town Manager that the majority of Councilors concurred and to make 237 
sure that figure is added to the budget. He thanked Councilor Thomson. 238 
 239 
Councilor Beers said they are at the no question/comment portion of the meeting but wanted to 240 
compliment the Town Manager, Finance Director and Dept. Heads for a most detailed, justifiable, well- 241 
structured, broad-scoped resolution of this historically chronic problem suffered financially in this town, 242 
ever.  He thanked them very much. 243 
 244 
Chairperson Lemont said they will be taking a five-minute recess at 5:55 p.m. and called the meeting 245 
back to order at 6:00 p.m. to address public hearings. 246 
 247 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 248 
 249 
 a.   (050218-2)  The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on the Taxpayer Relief 250 
Program. 251 
 252 
Chairperson Lemont asked if anyone wished to speak to, for or against this item to now do so.  He 253 
opened the public hearing.  Seeing none, he closed the public hearing at 6:02 p.m. 254 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

6 

COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED TO ACCEPT AS PRESENTED, SECONDED BY VICE-255 
CHAIRPERSON DENAULT. 256 
 257 
Chairperson Lemont addressed Councilor Dennett and asked if he had some concerns. 258 
 259 
Councilor Dennett said he would respectfully submit the motion is in order but it must be done by 260 
ordinance but that is not what is on the agenda.  He said the agenda states that it is just to hold a public 261 
hearing and that has been done. 262 
 263 
Chairperson Lemont asked Councilor Dennett if the motion and the second should be withdrawn? 264 
 265 
Councilor Dennett replied he thought so, but he is not the leader. 266 
 267 
Chairperson Lemont said you would never know it and that they need to withdraw the motion.  He 268 
asked Councilor Dennett how they should proceed? 269 
 270 
Councilor Dennett said that the Town Manager might like to put this on a subsequent agenda. 271 
 272 
Chairperson Lemont said consider it done and thanked Councilor Dennett. 273 
 274 
 b.   (050218-3)  The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on the application from 275 
Thomas Lynch for a Victualer’s License for Tommy’s Lunch Box at 99 State Road, Kittery. 276 
 277 
Chairperson Lemont asked if anyone wished to speak to, for or against the application and opened the 278 
public hearing at 6:04 p.m.   Seeing none, he closed the public hearing. 279 
 280 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED TO APPROVE THE APPLICATION FROM THOMAS LYNCH FOR 281 
A VICTUALER’S LICENSE FOR TOMMY’S LUNCH BOX AT 99 STATE ROAD, KITTERY.  VICE-282 
CHAIRPERSON DENAULT SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN, 7-0, 283 
WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR, NONE OPPOSED, MOTION CARRIES. 284 
 285 
 c.   (050218-4)   The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on the application 286 
from Bhikhabhai Patel for a Victualer’s License for the 7’Eleven at 169 State Road, Kittery, Maine. 287 
 288 
Chairperson Lemont said that the Code Enforcement Officer has conducted the inspection and found 289 
the establishment to be in compliance with the Town Code. 290 
 291 
Chairperson Lemont asked if anyone wished to speak to, for or against the application and opened the 292 
public hearing at 6:05 p.m.  Seeing none, he closed the public hearing. 293 
 294 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED TO APPROVE THE APPLICATION FROM BHIKHABHAI PATEL 295 
FOR A VICTUALER’S LICENSE FOR THE 7’ELEVEN AT 169 STATE ROAD, KITTERY.  VICE-296 
CHAIRPERSON DENAULT SECONDED THE MOTION. 297 
 298 
Chairperson Lemont asked for discussion and addressed Councilor Dennett. 299 
 300 
Councilor Dennett said that he may be totally confused but it was his understanding this item would be 301 
removed and put on the next agenda due to a technical problem. 302 
 303 
Chairperson Lemont asked the Town Manager if she was aware of any problem? 304 
 305 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

7 

Town Manager Amaral replied that what was put in the notice is the name of the person and not the 306 
entity, but the location is identified.  She asked if they wanted to withhold the public hearing or move 307 
forward?  She felt the notice was sufficient. 308 
 309 
Councilor Dennett said he must respectfully disagree.  He said the applicant is a corporation and is not 310 
listed here.  He said they would be issuing a license to an individual who did not want to be licensed.  311 
He said either people make out the application correctly or they do not.  He understood that this is 312 
complicated as the owner of the operation is changing sometime at the end of the month, depending on 313 
the date we issue the license.   314 
 315 
Town Manager Amaral said they are changing ownership at the end of the month. 316 
 317 
Councilor Brock asked the Town Manager if she was aware of this time-sensitive problem if we do not 318 
approve this tonight. 319 
 320 
Town Manager Amaral said the license expires May 31st and the next meeting is May 30th so it gives 321 
them one day. 322 
 323 
Councilor Brock asked if that will give them sufficient time to proceed unless there are more technical 324 
difficulties? 325 
 326 
Councilor Dennett said not to my knowledge.  He said it is his understanding the transfer of ownership 327 
is going to take place immediately upon the issuance of the Victualer’s license. 328 
 329 
Councilor Beers said point of order Mr. Chairman. 330 
 331 
Chairperson Lemont said yes Councilor Beers. 332 
 333 
Councilor Beers asked if the entity is changing ownership, wouldn’t the new ownership need to file an 334 
application. 335 
 336 
Councilor Dennett said in his opinion, yes.  He understands that other people would say no. 337 
 338 
Chairperson Lemont asked if the business was already transferred? 339 
 340 
Town Manager Amaral replied no, but she believes the name on the application is the new owner. 341 
 342 
Ms. Maurice said who is on the application is correct but she put the applicant’s name rather than the 343 
name of the corporation, so the application was filled out properly and what went out for the public 344 
hearing notice and how it is stated on the agenda is not correct.  She said the application is the current 345 
new owner. 346 
 347 
Councilor Brock asked if the public hearing notice was incorrect? 348 
 349 
Ms. Maurice replied that the applicant’s name should have been put on as Bapashree of New England 350 
Inc. instead. 351 
 352 
Councilor Beers said if this is a new owner, he would not be concerned if they postpone this to the 30th.   353 
He said they can still operate under the current license – whoever that is. 354 
 355 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

8 

Chairperson Lemont asked if the ownership was being transferred at the end of May until such time the 356 
new ownership takes over. 357 
 358 
Ms. Maurice said yes, this can be transferred.  She said the owner once everything is approved can 359 
finalize. 360 
 361 
Chairperson Lemont asked if they can clarify that for Council Dennett when we meet on the 30th? 362 
 363 
Councilor Pelletier said what she is saying is that the wording is correct for the meeting but for the 364 
public hearing is incorrect. 365 
 366 
Ms. Maurice responded yes, it should be Bapashree of New England Inc. 367 
 368 
Councilor Pelletier wanted to know if what they were saying was that they need to have another public 369 
hearing. 370 
 371 
Chairperson Lemont answered correct. 372 
 373 
Councilor Pelletier said okay, he is fine with that if that was the defective part, but the public hearing 374 
piece is the problem.  He said if someone had a bee in their bonnet with that corporation, but it was not 375 
on the agenda would be an issue.  He supported this item coming back on May 30th. 376 
 377 
Councilor Thomson asked how it was advertised? 378 
 379 
Chairperson Lemont said everything was correct except the agenda. 380 
 381 
Councilor Pelletier said the agenda and the public hearing notice. 382 
 383 
Ms. Maurice replied on the public hearing notice, it was advertised with the individual’s name. 384 
 385 
Chairperson Lemont asked what would the Town Council like to do? 386 
 387 
Councilor Thomson said he would withdraw his motion.  Vice-Chairperson Denault agreed to withdraw. 388 
 389 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED TO WITHDRAW THE MOTION AND THAT THE KITTERY TOWN 390 
COUNCIL TAKE NO ACTION ON THIS ITEM TONIGHT AND REQUESTED THAT THE PROPER 391 
NOTIFICATION BE MADE SO IT CAN BE ACTED ON AT THEIR MAY 30TH MEETING.  VICE-392 
CHAIRPERSON DENAULT SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL WERE IN FAVOR BY A VOICE VOTE, 393 
7-0.  MOTION CARRIES. 394 
 395 
11. DISCUSSION    - none 396 
 397 
12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  - none 398 
 399 
13. NEW BUSINESS 400 
 401 
 a.  Donations /gifts received for Council disposition – none 402 
 403 
 b.   (050218-5)  The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the disbursement warrants. 404 
 405 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

9 

Chairperson Lemont asked if the Town and Sewer payables were in due form.  Councilor Beers replied 406 
they were. 407 
 408 
Chairperson Lemont said there was no School Warrant tonight. 409 
 410 
Chairperson Lemont read the amounts:  Town Payable - $112,963.21 and Sewer Payable, $32,298.77 411 
for a total of $145,261.98. 412 
 413 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE DISBURSEMENT WARRANTS BE PAID AS 414 
PRESENTED.  COUNCILOR PELLETIER SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL WERE IN FAVOR BY A 415 
VOICE VOTE, 7-0, MOTION CARRIES. 416 
 417 
 c.   (050218-6)  The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing on June 11, 2018 418 
to vote on the FY’19 municipal budget. 419 
 420 
VICE-CHAIRPERSON DENAULT MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL SCHEDULE A 421 
PUBLIC HEARING ON JUNE 11TH TO VOTE ON THE FY19 MUNICIPAL BUDGET, SECONDED BY 422 
COUNCILOR PELLETIER.   423 
 424 
Councilor Thomson asked if this motion means we must vote on the proposed budget on June 11th, but 425 
as the public hearing is happening, there may be questions raised that need to be clarified.  He said, as 426 
per the Town Charter, the Council has the ability not to act – quite frankly - until July 31, 2018.  He said 427 
that is his question. 428 
 429 
Vice-Chairperson said he would amend his motion. 430 
 431 
Chairperson Lemont asked the Town Manager what are her expectations for that evening? 432 
 433 
Town Manager Amaral replied, ideally, they would approve it before the start of the fiscal year would be 434 
preferable. 435 
 436 
Councilor Thomson said he does not disagree, but the way it reads, we are locked into June 11th to 437 
vote on it and the motion should say the public hearing will be on June 11th. 438 
 439 
Vice-Chairperson Denault said that is what he said and he stands by that. 440 
 441 
Councilor Brock asked, through the Chair, if changed, as just suggested, does that mean we can vote 442 
on that item? 443 
 444 
Councilor Beers responded either way it works, we cannot vote on June 11th and move it to a later time 445 
if necessary or warranted or leave it as it is and have the opportunity to do so if we feel strongly to do it 446 
that evening. 447 
 448 
Councilor Thomson said if everyone is okay with Councilor Beers’ comment, it is fine with him.  He said 449 
he did not want to have a development arise whereby they have the public hearing and questions are 450 
raised which we would have to sought out that night because we have to vote on it tonight. 451 
 452 
Councilor Dennett said this is a little different from the wording we usually have on this.  He said that it 453 
would say “to schedule a public hearing for June 11th and vote” but this gives us a little more leeway.  454 
He said it could still be postponed and he has no problem with it as it is. 455 
 456 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

10 

Chairperson Lemont asked Councilor Dennett if he would like the word changed to “and”? 457 
 458 
Councilor Dennett replied no, it usually says “and” but either way is fine, it still gives us leeway. 459 
 460 
Councilor Thomson said, through the Chair, that it is fine the way it is and he regrets bringing this up. 461 
 462 
ALL WERE IN FAVOR BY A VOICE VOTE, 7-0, MOTION CARRIES. 463 
 464 
 d.   (050218-7)  The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint Peter Thomas to the Shellfish 465 
Conservation Commission until 12/31/2021.   466 
 467 
Councilor Dennett said Mr. Chairperson, the interview has been held and is favorable. 468 
 469 
COUNCILOR DENNETT MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPOINT PETER 470 
THOMAS TO THE SHELLFISH CONSERVATION COMMISSION UNTIL 12/31/21 AND IT WAS 471 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR PELLETIER.  ROLL CALL VOTE WS TAKEN WITH ALL VOTING IN 472 
FAVOR, 7-0.  MOTION CARRIES. 473 
 474 
 e.   (050218-8)  The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint Todd Rollins to the Shellfish 475 
Conservation Commission until 12/31/2021. 476 
 477 
Vice-Chairperson Denault said the interview was held and he was unanimously accepted with the 478 
Shellfish Chair. 479 
 480 
VICE-CHAIRPERSON DENAULT MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPOINT TODD 481 
ROLLINS TO THE SHELLFISH CONSERVATION COMMISSION UNTIL 12/31/2021.  COUNCILOR 482 
PELLETIER SECONDED THE MOTION.  483 
 484 
Chairperson Lemont said he had one question and asked Ms. Maurice if she knows that with this 485 
appointment the Board is filled now? 486 
 487 
Ms. Maurice replied yes. 488 
 489 
ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR, 7-0.  MOTION CARRIES. 490 
 491 
 f.   (050218-9)  The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a Pole Location Permit from Central 492 
Maine Power to put in a new pole at a distance of eighty feet southerly from Spinney Cove Road. 493 
 494 
COUNCILOR DENNETT MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE POLE 495 
LOCATION PERMIT FROM CENTRAL MAINE POWER TO PUT IN A NEW POLE AT A DISTRANCE 496 
OF EIGHTY FEET SOUTHERLY FROM SPINNEY COVE ROAD.  COUNCILOR THOMSON 497 
SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL WERE IN FAVOR BY A VOICE VOTE, 7-0, MOTION CARRIES. 498 
 499 
 g.   (050218-10)  The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal application from WLH 500 
Management Corp., 11 Water St., Kittery, ME for a Malt, Vinous and Spirituous Liquor License for 501 
Warren’s Lobster House, 11 Water Street. 502 
 503 
Chairperson Lemont said that the Code Enforcement Officer has conducted the inspection and found 504 
the establishment to be in compliance with the Town Code. 505 
 506 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

11 

VICE-CHAIRPERSON DENAULT MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 507 
RENEWAL APPLICATION FROM WLH MANAGEMENT CORP., 11 WATER STREET, FOR A MALT, 508 
SPIRITUOUS AND VINOUS LIQUOR LICENSE FOR WARREN’S LOBSTER HOUSE, 11 WATER 509 
STREET.  COUNCILOR THOMSON SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN 510 
WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR, 7-0, MOTION CARRIES. 511 
 512 
 h.   (050218-11)  The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal application from Chios 513 
Pizza Inc., 15 Wentworth St., Kittery, ME for a Malt, Vinous and Spirituous Liquor License for Town 514 
Pizza, 15 Wentworth Street. 515 
 516 
Chairperson Lemont said that the Code Enforcement Officer has conducted the inspection and found 517 
the establishment to be in compliance with the Town Code. 518 
 519 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 520 
RENEWAL APPLICATION FROM CHIOS PIZZA INC., 15 WENTWORTH ST., KITTERY, ME FOR A 521 
MALT, VINOUS AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUOR LICENSE FOR TOWN PIZZA, 15 WENTWORTH 522 
STREET.   VICE-CHAIRPERSON DENAULT SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS 523 
TAKEN WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR, 7-0.  MOTION CARRIES. 524 
 525 
 i.   (050218-12)  The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal application from Maine 526 
Ocean Lobster LLC, 31 Badger’s Island West, Kittery, ME for a Malt, Vinous and Spirituous Liquor 527 
License for The Pointe, 31 Badger’s Island West. 528 
 529 
Chairperson Lemont said that the Code Enforcement Officer has conducted the inspection and found 530 
the establishment to be in compliance with the Town Code. 531 
 532 
VICE-CHAIRPERSON DENAULT MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 533 
RENEWAL APPLICATION FROM MAINE OCEAN LOBSTER LLC, 31 BADGER’S ISLAND WEST, 534 
KITTERY, ME FOR A MALT, VINOUS AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUOR LICENSE FOR THE POINTE, 31 535 
BADGER’S ISLAND WEST.  COUNCILOR THOMSON SECONDED THE MOTION.   536 
 537 
Councilor Dennett said he had a question on the supplemental application. 538 
 539 
Chairperson Lemont asked him what was his concern? 540 
 541 
Councilor Dennett replied that it had not been signed and asked the Town Clerk to call the applicant to 542 
have him come in to be signed. 543 
 544 
ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR, 7-0.  MOTION CARRIES. 545 
 546 
 j.   (050218-13)  The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a one-day extension of the service 547 
area of the premises externally on the current liquor license for The Black Birch, 2 Government Street, 548 
from 9:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. for the Kittery Block Party on June 16, 2018. 549 
 550 
COUNCILOR PELLETIER MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 551 
REQUEST FOR A ONE-DAY EXTENSION OF SERVICE AREA OF THE PREMISES, EXTERNALLY, 552 
ON THE CURRENT LIQUOR LICENSE FOR THE BLACK BIRCH, 2 GOVERNMENT STREET, 553 
FROM 9:00 A.M. – 10:00 P.M. FOR THE KITTERY BLOCK PARTY ON JUNE 16, 2018.  554 
COUNCILOR THOMSON SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH ALL 555 
VOTING IN FAVOR, 7-0.  MOTION CARRIES. 556 
 557 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

12 

 k.  (050218-14)  The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the policy for Collection of Unpaid 558 
Taxes. 559 
 560 
Town Manager Amaral asked if Council could hold off voting on this as well and do in conjunction with 561 
the Taxpayer Relief Policy. 562 
 563 
Councilor Thomson said we could postpone this item until May 30th as requested. 564 
 565 
Councilor Beers felt that they could just withdraw the agenda item. 566 
 567 
Chairperson Lemont said consider it done and asked that this item be placed on the May 30th agenda. 568 
 569 
 l.  (050218-15)  The Kittery Town Council moves to postpone the ordainment of Title 15 Ethics, 570 
to the meeting of June 25th. 571 
 572 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL POSTPONE THE 573 
ORDAINMENT OF TITLE 15, ETHICS, TO THE MEETING OF JUNE 25TH, SECONDED BY VICE-574 
CHAIRPERSON DENAULT.  ALL WERE IN FAVOR BY A VOICE VOTE, 7-0, MOTION CARRIES. 575 
 576 
14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 577 
 578 
Vice-Chairperson Denault said he would like to recognize Milton Hall, who recently passed.  He said he 579 
was 81 years old and lived on Bowen Road.  He said Mr. Hall was raised in his home in Kittery and 580 
attended Traip Academy and Maine Maritime Academy.  He served in the Merchant Marines and 581 
retired after 20 years of service.  He said Mr. Hall was the Chair of Kittery Port Authority and 582 
volunteered at the Kittery Naval & Historical Museum for many years.  He said Mr. Hall enjoyed 583 
lobstering.   584 
 585 
Vice-Chairperson Denault said he remembers him with kindness and asked if he could make a motion 586 
to adjourn the Council meeting in memory of Milton Hall. 587 
 588 
Councilor Thomson said that he and his wife returned from their two-week to France and while they 589 
were there they took a trip to Normandy and walked on Omaha Beach.  He said they could not go in 590 
part of the cemetery as it had rained and they were concerned with the turf.  He choked up and said 591 
that in all his years of teaching U.S. History – it is something he will never forget. 592 
 593 
Councilor Dennett said he is waiting for the Town Manager to say – for the public record – who is the 594 
new Harbor Master? 595 
 596 
Town Manager Amaral said they hired retired Police Sergeant John Brosnihan, who has experience in 597 
the Coast Guard, as the new Harbor Master and he is looking forward to it. 598 
 599 
15. COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS    600 
 601 
Councilor Beers said the Library Transition sub-committee met earlier this month and reviewed the 602 
extensive agenda and dealt with all the figures necessary to transfer the Rice Public Library from 603 
private to a town department.  He said they will meet again on June 6th. 604 
 605 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION – none 606 
 607 
17. ADJOURNMENT:   608 



Kittery Town Council May 14, 2018 Unapproved Minutes 

13 

 609 
VICE-CHAIRPERSON DENAULT MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 6:29 P.M. IN HONOR 610 
OF MILTON HALL FOR HIS MANY YEARS OF SERVICE.  COUNCILOR PELLETIER SECONDED 611 
THE MOTION.  VOICE VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR.  MOTION CARRIES. 612 
 613 
 614 
Respectfully submitted, 615 
 616 
 617 
Barbara Boggiano 618 
Recording Secretary 619 
 620 
 621 





FY19 BUDGET VOTE WORKSHEET
GENERAL FUND

GENERAL FUND
 ACTUAL

FY15 
 ACTUAL

FY16 
 ACTUAL

FY17 

 BUDGET 
ADJ
FY18 

 PROPOSED
FY19 Town Council Vote 6/11/18

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Admin 759,139        883,013        913,698        864,865        922,056              
Council 5,645            5,489            4,936            7,350            7,350                  
Elections 8,752            9,957            9,611            11,300          11,800                
Total General Government 773,536        898,459        928,245        883,515        941,206              

SHARED EXPENSES
Employee Benefits & Insurance 1,974,614     2,034,617     2,191,835     2,330,962     2,650,775           
Debt Service 670,272        691,728        891,126        861,988        840,861              
Total Shared Expenses 2,644,886     2,726,345     3,082,961     3,192,950     3,491,636           

PLANNING & CODE ENFORCEMENT
Planning Board & BOA 10,072          10,251          9,765            16,337          14,149                
Planning & Code Enforcement 253,841        251,912        297,464        299,970        342,457              
Assessor 140,110        101,684        130,809        142,351        144,022              
Misc Exp - Public Health 522               528               520               520               520                     
Total Planning & Code Enforcement 404,545        364,375        438,558        459,178        501,148              

PUBLIC SAFETY
Fire 268,573        309,830        306,883        303,906        331,910              
Police 2,008,488     2,074,763     2,037,297     2,120,898     2,231,411           
Civil Preparedness 262               -                -                700               700                     
Public Safety 2,277,322     2,384,592     2,344,180     2,425,504     2,564,021           

PUBLIC WORKS
Highway 919,591        832,033        878,528        1,003,764     1,061,328           
Resource Recovery 463,854        483,118        482,091        509,394        535,237              
In Town Parks 112,898        121,882        122,488        129,433        133,618              
Fort Foster/Seapoint/Crescent Beach 107,128        102,173        126,335        149,755        155,486              
Public Works 1,603,472     1,539,206     1,609,442     1,792,346     1,885,669           

PAGE 1 of 2



FY19 BUDGET VOTE WORKSHEET
GENERAL FUND

 ACTUAL
FY15 

 ACTUAL
FY16 

 ACTUAL
FY17 

 BUDGET 
ADJ
FY18 

 PROPOSED
FY19 Town Council Vote 6/11/18

COMMUNITY & HUMAN SERVICES
Library 440,916        448,412        457,380        467,380        478,901              
Harbormaster 97,473          94,663          94,045          95,675          94,950                
Recreation 932,547        975,839        987,087        1,025,907     1,054,874           
Misc Exp - General Assistance 59,476          48,141          59,440          50,000          50,000                
Community Agencies 13,830          11,230          11,730          11,765          9,165                  
Community and Human Services 1,544,242     1,578,285     1,609,682     1,650,727     1,687,890           

MISC EXPENSES - OTHER
County Tax 908,475        912,948        909,420        934,420        869,853              
Streetlights & Machine/Equip. Maint. 126,071        128,599        149,868        130,000        120,000              
Hydrant Rental 215,979        224,348        246,775        254,179        261,804              
Other Miscellaneous 222,571        220,560        202,329        288,626        308,560              
Other 1,473,096     1,486,455     1,508,392     1,607,225     1,560,217           

TOTAL MUNICIPAL BUDGET 10,721,099   10,977,716   11,521,461   12,011,445   12,631,787         

ADULT EDUCATION BUDGET 69,835          69,835          73,103          80,590          86,765                
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET 1,208,975     1,159,492     1,208,975     1,509,303     1,703,281           

Projected Commitment 24,541,734$       
Projected Overlay 75,000$              

Budget as
Projected Valuation Increase Over FY18 Submitted $5,000 $10,000 $15,000

$12 Million Increase (Current Budget Projection) 16.99$          16.99$          17.00$          17.00$          
$13 Million Increase 16.98$          16.98$          16.98$          16.99$          
$15 Million Increase 16.95$          16.96$          16.96$          16.96$          

 Requested Town Council 
Budget Increase 

MIL RATE PROJECTIONS

PAGE 2 of 2



FY19 BUDGET VOTE WORKSHEET
SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
ACTUAL    

FY15
ACTUAL    

FY16
ACTUAL    

FY17
BUDGET    

FY18

PROPOSED    
FY19 (w/proposed 

Rate Increase) Town Council Vote 6/11/18
43210 SEWER LIEN FEES                ‐                3,666           ‐               ‐               ‐                          
43220 PENALTY INTEREST               ‐                12,137         4,847           ‐               4,847                      
45001 REVENUE US NAVY                450,839       491,049       547,967       580,695       595,046                 
45002 REVENUE US NAVY HOUSING        89,666         88,690         91,033         93,590         93,308                    
45003 REVENUE OTHER                  29,432         15,285         25,340         137,371       25,340                    
45004 REVENUE TOWN OF ELIOT          149,602       184,297       221,944       177,138       227,493                 
45005 REVENUE NEW SEWER              990,809       1,162,405   1,177,382   1,187,079   1,691,093             
45006 EXPANSION ASSESSMENT REVENUE   ‐                ‐               318,599       79,000         66,221                    
45007 SEWER INTEREST REVENUE         3,195            626              7,271           ‐               ‐                          
45008 UNBILLED REVENUE SEWER         911               ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐                          

SEWER REVENUE NEW RATES 1,714,454    1,958,154   2,394,383   2,254,873   2,703,348             

SEWER EXPENSES 1,800,076    1,898,265   2,509,781   2,423,589   2,589,501             





 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
 

R E P O R T  T O  T O W N  C O U N C I L  
 

Meeting Date: May 30, 2018 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: Sewer Rate Changes 

Councilor Sponsor: Chairperson Kenneth Lemont 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Following a thorough review of the Sewer Enterprise Fund it has been confirmed that sewer rates 
must be adjusted to address a growing structural deficit in the fund.   
 
Current analysis shows the Sewer Operating Fund has a deficit owed to the Town General Fund 
of approximately $880,000 at the end of FY2017 (adjusted).  The deficit to the General Fund has 
been growing over time and is related to a number of factors including expenses outpacing 
revenue, use of one-time funds for regular and annual capital expenditures (excluding contractual 
offsets with Eliot and the Portsmouth Navy Shipyard), and debt service from the expansion and 
renovation project.   It is critical to note, the deficit began and has been growing prior to the 
implementation of the expansion debt service; and therefore is not solely the result of that 
project. 
 
The proposed rate increases will bring the fixed rate for up to 1,000 cubic feet (10 HCF) from 
$75.00 to $100.00 per quarter and for each one hundred cubic feet in excess of 1,000 from $5.00 
to $7.46.   
 
It is believed these rate adjustments will address the growing deficit and provide for a sufficient 
unencumbered reserve fund balance to properly manage and protect the Sewer Enterprise Fund. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The town auditors have been noting since the conclusion of the 2016 audit, that the Sewer Fund 
is generating a fund deficit, which is only being exacerbated by the new debt service.  With the 
arrival of the new Finance Director and the completion of the 2017 audit the deficit was 
confirmed at $1.2M.  Following additional evaluation and application of adjusting journal entries, 
the deficit was reduced to $880,000.  This is offset by encumbered reserves. 
 
The administration engaged Woodard and Curran to conduct an operational and financial analysis 
and produce a rate model.  The operational analysis confirmed the Sewer department is operating 
as efficiently as possible to meet its operational and regulatory obligations. 
 



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL   MEETING DATE: MAY 30, 2018 

2 

 

The Town Council held two workshops with the Town Manager, Finance Director, Sewer 
Superintendent, and Woodard and Curran to review information and consider scenarios and 
options for addressing the deficits.  The workshops occurred on April 9, 2018 and May 21, 2018.  
Video archives of the workshops are available on the town website www.kitteryme.gov. 
 
STATEMENT OF NEED 

The Sewer Enterprise Fund should be wholly self-supporting, and not require cash from the 
General Fund for its operating and capital expenses.  Rates must sufficiently provide for the 
operating costs, the maintenance and capital costs, and for a sufficient fund balance to protect the 
fund from catastrophic events such as infrastructure damage or failure, or revenue loss from 
reduced customer activity in a given a year. 
 
The administration proposes increasing both fixed charges for up to 1,000 cubic feet of flow and 
the flow rate for each 100 cubic feet thereafter.  The proposed mix provides a conservative 
approach to meeting the operations expenses, capital needs, and rebuilding a sufficient reserve 
that could also be used to smooth future rate increases..   
 
The Council further requested as part of their consideration of the matter, that a reserve policy or 
target be incorporated into Title 13 to provide a necessary gauge and guide for the future setting 
of rates.  The fund balances will be reviewed no less than every three years going forward to 
assess the financial health of the fund and determine whether rate adjustments are warranted. 
 
PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt the amendments to Title 13 and Appendix A as proposed. 



KITTERY TOWN CODE TITLE 13, PROPOSED AMENDMENT –  
SEWER RATES AND CHARGES  

DRAFT: May 30, 2018 
 

AN ORDINANCE relating to the municipality’s authority for Town governance to give due and 1 
proper attention to its many demands pursuant to the Town Charter, Federal law, and Maine 2 
Revised Statutes, and more particularly where set forth in Maine Revised Statutes Title 30-A, 3 
Municipalities and Counties. 4 

WHEREAS, the Kittery Town Council is authorized to enact this Ordinance, as specified in 5 
Sections 1.01 and 2.07(3) of the Town Charter; and 30-A MRS §3001, pursuant to its powers that 6 
authorize the town, under certain circumstance, to provide for the public health, welfare, morals, 7 
and safety, and does not intend for this Ordinance to conflict with any existing state or federal 8 
laws; and 9 

WHEREAS, Title 13 contains the factors associated with the establishment and adjustment of 10 
sewer rates including the maintenance, operation, repair and improvements to the system; and 11 

WHEREAS, the Kittery Town Council seeks to recognize a fund reserve or unencumbered fund 12 
surplus as an additional and critical factor associated with the establishment and adjustment of 13 
sewer rates;  14 

NOW THEREFORE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 30-A MRS §3001 AND TOWN CHARTER 15 
§2.14, THE TOWN OF KITTERY HEREBY ORDAINS AMENDMENT TO TITLE 13 OF THE 16 
TOWN CODE, AS PRESENTED. 17 

INTRODUCED and read in a public session of the Town Council on the ____ day of _______, 18 

20___, by:__________________ {NAME}   Motion to approve by Councilor 19 

__________________ {NAME},  as seconded by Councilor __________________ {NAME} and 20 

passed by a vote of _______. 21 

THIS ORDINANCE IS DULY AND PROPERLY ORDAINED by the Town Council of Kittery, 22 

Maine on the ______ day of _______, 20___, {NAME}, __________________ , Chairperson 23 

Attest:  {NAME}, __________________Town Clerk 24 



DRAFT: May 30, 2018  

Title 13 PUBLIC SERVICES 1 

Chapter 13.1  SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM 2 
13.1.1.7 Rates and Charges. 3 

A. The Town Council shall establish such rates as they deem necessary for the 4 
maintenance, operation, repair and improvements to the system, and establish and maintain 5 
an unencumbered fund reserve (unencumbered surplus) of an amount equal to the 6 
equivalent of twenty-two percent (22%) of the current year operating budget. Such rates may 7 
be changed from time to time as they deem necessary. The user charge and appropriate cost 8 
recovery system as set out in Appendix A is to be established in accordance with appropriate 9 
federal and state laws, rules and regulations. 10 

B. Sewer charges levied pursuant to this chapter not paid by July 1st of the following year 11 
are to be certified to the Treasurer of the Town who is to place the same on the real estate 12 
property tax bill for that year with interest and penalties allowed by law and are collected as 13 
other tTown taxes are collected. 14 



Page 3 of 8 

DRAFT: May 30, 2018 

 

 
 

Additional charge for any unusual circumstances $15.00 

SCHEDULE 12.  STREETS, SIDEWALKS and PUBLIC PLACES  

Chapter 12.1 EXCAVATIONS, 
Excavation Permit Fees  (per square yard) 

 

Surface Condition First 25 square yards Over 25 square yards 
Asphalt pavement $10.00 $8.00 
Portland concrete $12.00 $10.00 
Gravel $1.00 $0.80 
Lawn grass $3.00 $2.75 
Field grass slopes $1.00 $0.80 
Unimproved areas $0.50 $0.35 

Chapter 12.6  SHELLFISH,  Shellfish License Fees  

Resident recreational $15.00 
Residents 70 and over (limited to 15 licenses) Free 
Nonresident recreational $30.00 

SCHEDULE  13.  PUBLIC SERVICES  

Chapter 13.1  SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM  

Article I. In General 
Rates and charges:  Quarterly Usage and Capital Charge 
1.  First 1,000 cubic feet or fraction thereof 

 
 

$75.00 100.00 
2.  Per one hundred cubic feet in excess of 1,000 feet $5.00 7.46 

Article III. Building Sewers and Connections 
Building sewer permit fees: 
1.  Residential or commercial 

 
 

$15.00 
2. Industrial $15.00 

Article V. Private Sewage Disposal 
Private sewage disposal system permit and inspection fee 

 
$10.00 

Private sewage treatment facility after-hours labor charge $25.00 per hour 
( three-hour minimum labor charge) 

Septic tank contents discharge rate $0.10 per gallon 

Holding tank contents discharge rate $0.015 per gallon 
 

Article VI. New Sewer Service Connection Fees 
 

Sewer Impact Fee (per unit charge) $3,000.00 
 

Sewer impact fees payable by the property owner must be paid prior to the connection of any 
sewer line to the municipal sewage collection system; or upon the issuance of any plumbing 
permit for additional plumbing fixtures; or change in use of any property already connected to 
the municipal sewage collection system.  (See §13.1.6.5). 

 





























 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
 

R E P O R T  T O  T O W N  C O U N C I L  
 

Meeting Date: June 11, 2018 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: Library Committees Appointees 

Councilor Sponsor: Chairperson Kenneth Lemont 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Library Building and Taylor Building committees met separately to review applications from 
citizens interested in participating on each committee.   
 
The Library Building Committee had 14 applicants for five available seats.  The Council, 
Library Board, and staff members met and reviewed the applications and recommend the 
following be appointed: 
 

- James Anderson 
- Timothy Brochu 
- Fran Farr 
- Margaret Meyers 
- Jennifer Brewer 

 
 

The Taylor Building Committee had three applicants for three available seats.  The Council, 
Library Board, and staff members met and reviewed the applications and recommend the 
following be appointed: 
 

- Roger Cole 
- Barry Fitzpatrick 
- Jan Lamont-Rodonets 

 

PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION 

Appoint citizen members to the two committees as recommended. 





















 
 
 
 
To: Ken Lamont, Kittery Council Chair 
 
cc: K. Amaral , Town Manager 
     G. Dow , EDC Chair 
 
Re: Lincoln Resignation  from E.D.C                                                         May 31, 2018 
 
Having been on the Economic Development Committee since its inception, 
I take pride in its longevity and in the progress made. The current membership, 
and the professional support furnished by Town staff is a testimony to the 
progress possible in the future 
  
Thus, it is with confidence that Kittery will move forward, that I tender my 
resignation from the Economic Development Committee, effective  June 30, 2018. 
 
This gives the Council 30 days to interview and select an individual capable of 
delivering knowledge, experience and skill required to be a productive member of 
E.D.C. 
 
I suggest that the Council deviate from the timeworn tradition of "picking from 
the pool" , and search for a candidate who will contribute to results being 
delivered by the experienced and talented current committee members. 
 The importance of Kittery's economic development requires this deviation from 
past practice ! 
 
 
David Lincoln, Kittery, Maine 
 
Transmitted by email as above, May 31, 2018 
with USPS hard copy to Mr Lamont, June1, 2018 





 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
 
 

 
R E P O R T  T O  T O W N  C O U N C I L  

 
Meeting Date: June 11, 2018 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: Wetlands Preservation Fund 

Councilor Sponsor: Chairperson Kenneth Lemont 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Parks Commission is interested in the town generating a comprehensive invasive species 
map for Fort Foster.  The request came in too late to attempt to incorporate it into the FY19 
budget proposal, but the need is evident. 
 
The Parks Commission has been working with Public Works to address issues with invasive 
species impacting the flora in the park.  The town budgets each year for invasive management.  
Without a map showing targeted areas, the vendor spends some of their allotted time searching 
the grounds of the large park to identify areas requiring treatment. 
 
The invasive map will allow the vendor to provide targeted treatment.  This project will also allow 
the DPW and Parks Commission the opportunity to assess the effectiveness of the invasive 
management program over time and make adjustments as needed. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Per Town Code 16.9.3.9.3 the Planning Board recommends and the Council approves release of 
funds in the Wetlands Preservation Fee fund.  The estimate for the project is $3,705.   I 
recommend the Council authorize release of up to $4,000 in case there are incidental or 
unanticipated scope adjustments associated with this project.   
 
The Wetland Preservation Fee fund (Wetlands Mitigation Fund, 2060) has a balance of $25,156.   
 
The administration, Parks Commission, Conservation Commission, and Planning Board 
recommend the release of Wetlands Preservation Fee funds for the project. 
 
PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize release of funds as recommended. 



 
 

 

 

P:\PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT\PLANNING BOARD\memos\To Council-Parks Commission Funding 
Request.docx 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
Planning and Development 

200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 
Telephone: 207-475-1307  Fax: 207-439-6806 

 

TO: TOWN COUNCIL  

FROM: PLANNING BOARD 

SUBJECT: PARKS COMMISSION REQUEST TO FUND FORT FOSTER INVASIVE SPECIES 
MANAGEMENT PLAN – PHASE 1 
 

DATE: JUNE 4, 2018 

CC: KENDRA AMARAL, TOWN MANAGER, ADAM CAUSEY, DIRECTORY OF PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT, KATHY CONNOR, INTERIM TOWN PLANNER  

 
On May 24th, 2018, Shaye Robbins of the Parks Commission presented FB Environmental’s proposal 
to draft an invasive species eradication/management plan for Fort Foster. Numerous invasive species 
(as listed by the State of Maine) are known to exist in the park. 
 
The FB Environmental proposal includes two phases: 
 
Phase 1: Management and administration 

• Invasive species field mapping 
• GIS data and mapping creation, with uploading to the iMapInvasives application. 

 
Phase 2: Removal of the known invasive species by a contractor and replacement of vegetation 
where needed: 

• On-site coordination with Vegetation Control Service 
• Ordinance review and permitting for removal 
• Management Plan creation 
• Presentation to Town Council 

 
Both the Parks Commission and the Conservation Commission (see Conservation Commission’s 
letter to the Planning Board dated May 9th 2018) believe that this proposal is consistent with the 
intent of the Wetlands Preservation Fund (Title 16’s 16.9.3.9.3.d) because it involves both 
environmental and conservation work. The plan will serve to preserve and protect Fort Foster from 
destructive invasive species and reclaim portions of the park for native species.  
 
The Planning Board is strongly supportive of the Parks Commission request and agreed that the 
proposal serves the purpose of the Wetlands Preservation Fund. The Board voted unanimously on 
May 24, 2018 to recommend that Town Council consider releasing $3,705 to fund Phase 1 of FB 
Environmental’s proposal so that the invasive species mapping can occur during the 2018 growing 
season. 



 
 

Mr. Richard DeMarco  
Co-Chair, Kittery Parks Commission
200 Rogers Road 
Kittery, ME 03904 
 
May 14, 2018 
 

Dear Mr. DeMarco, 

 

FB Environmental Associates (FBE) is pleased to submit the attached proposal to 
conduct several tasks associated with the mapping of non-native, invasive plant 
species (invasives) present at Kittery’s Fort Foster Park.  

FBE is a ten-person environmental consulting firm with offices located in Portland, 
Maine and Portsmouth, New Hampshire. Since the company's start in 2001, we 
have focused much of our work on evaluating natural areas and helping 
communities reduce human impacts on waterbodies and wetlands. We have 
completed natural resource assessments and management plans throughout New 
England for both individual properties and entire towns. The vast majority of our 
work is completed for the public sector, including state agencies, the US EPA, and 
a number of municipalities. 

The project area for the activities proposed herein consists of the entire 
approximately 95-acre park (see attached map). FBE’s Kevin Ryan conducted a site 
visit on March 6, 2018 with Shaye Robbins, Gary Mitchell, David Wrocklage, and 
Page Mead. Numerous invasive plant species were either observed during the site 
visit or are known to exist at the site, including glossy false buckthorn (Frangula 
alnus), oriental bittersweet (Celastrus orbiculatus), honeysuckle (Lonicera 
morrowii and/or L. tatarica), black swallowwort (Cynanchum louiseae), and 
barberry (Berberis vulgaris and/or B. thunbergii).      

As a first step to assist with the management of invasives present at Fort Foster, we 
propose to conduct field mapping of invasives using GPS, produce electronic maps 
using GIS software, and upload collected data into iMapInvasives.  

Kevin Ryan, Ph.D., FBE’s Ecological Services division lead, will conduct the 
majority of work associated with this project. If you have any questions, I can be 
reached on my cell phone at (207) 650-7597, or via email at 
info@fbenvironmental.com. 

 Sincerely, 

 
 
Forrest Bell 
Principal, FB Environmental Associates 

  
97 A Exchange St. 

Suite 305 
Portland, ME 

04101 
______________ 

207-221-6699 (v) 
www.fbenvironmental.com 

 



FBE – Fort Foster Invasives Mapping Proposal 

2 
 

PROJECT ESTIMATE (AND SCOPE OF SERVICES) 

Task 1. Project Management and Administration 

In order to effectively manage this project, FBE will: 

 Participate in phone calls and email communication with the client; 

 Conduct project management duties (directing staff, scheduling); 

 Complete project invoicing, memorandums, and other administrative duties.  

Task 2. Invasive Species Mapping  

Task 2a: Field Mapping 

FBE’s Kevin Ryan will conduct a site visit specifically to document the extent and location (via handheld 

GPS) of invasive plant species throughout Fort Foster (see attached map). Kevin Ryan will be 

accompanied by Gary Mitchell, who has extensive knowledge of the park and the locations of invasives 

within it.    

Task 2b: GIS map creation and data upload to iMapInvasives 

FBE will produce maps using GIS that depict locations of invasive plants throughout Fort Foster. 

Polygons will be used to represent patches of infestation (e.g., a stand of Japanese knotweed) and points 

shall represent individual, isolated occurrences of invasive plants (e.g., a single autumn olive in a field).  

In addition to creating GIS maps, FBE will upload collected data into iMapinvasives, which is an online, 

GIS-based data management system used to assist those working to protect natual areas from non-native, 

invasive speices.  The following is an excerpt from the iMapInvasives website, 

https://www.imapinvasives.org/:  

iMapInvasives is designed to share and manage invasive species information for 
stakeholders within your state or province. This information includes species maps, 
treatment efforts and effectiveness, and areas where invasive species were searched for 
but were not found.  Since many regulatory and budgetary decisions about invasive 
species are made at the state level, each state/province can customize the iMapInvasives 
interface by selecting their tracked species list, data permission levels, and many other 
details.  On a broader scale, iMapInvasives is a growing, collaborative partnership of 
participating states and provinces, creating a network of professionals and shared 
resources to help combat the threat of invasive species. 

  



FBE – Fort Foster Invasives Mapping Proposal 

3 
 

SCHEDULE OF WORK 

Fieldwork can begin in summer or fall of the current year.  

COMPENSATION 

The cost of FB Environmental's services is up to $3,705.00. The cost shall not be exceeded without prior 

authorization from the Town of Kittery. The amount is based on time and materials (see below). If the 

scope of work changes materially, the amounts of compensation set forth herein shall be equitably 

adjusted in writing. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

TASK 1: PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION
Site visit preparation, administration, and overall project management. 955.00$          
Task 1 Total 955.00$         

TASK 2a: FIELD MAPPING
Up to two days of invasives mapping.  1,265.00$        
Expenses: Mileage - two round trips (200 miles @ $0.55/mile) 110.00$          
Task 2a Total 1,375.00$      

TASK 2b: MAP PRODUCTION & IMAPINVASIVES DATA UPLOAD
GIS map production and upload of data into iMapinvasives database. 1,375.00$        
Task 2b Total 1,375.00$      
GRAND TOTAL 3,705.00$      

PROJECT TASKS



FBE – Fort Foster Invasives Mapping Proposal 

4 
 

ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS: 

To further define our role in the project, our assumptions are as follows: 

 Gary Mitchell will accompany Kevin Ryan during the field visit(s) associated with Task 2a: Field 
Mapping. 

 By signing this contract, the town of Kittery authorizes FBE to upload data collected as part of this 
project into the iMapInvasives database.   

 All deliverables will be provided electronic format (e.g., including invasive species map[s]). 

 

INVOICES 

FBE will submit invoices based on lump sum by task.  FBE is a small business, and functions best when 
invoices are submitted on a monthly basis. We ask that payments be made within 30 days from the date of 
invoice. Thank you and we look forward to assisting the Town of Kittery with this project. 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONSULTING SERVICES 

By signing below, FB Environmental Associates and the Town of Kittery accept the terms and conditions 
stated herein.  

 

 

 

               

Forrest Bell ~ FB Environmental Associates   

Date: May 14, 2018      Date:       
 
 
 



FBE – Fort Foster Invasives Mapping Proposal 

5 
 

 





200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904
Inhabitants of the Town of Kittery

Town of Kittery MAP 10 Lot 5, Whipple Road, Kittery Maine

10 5

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



188.1

Town of Kittery

Feet188.1

This information has been complied from various public and private sources. While every attempt has been made to provide accurate

information, neither the municipality nor the service host guarantee the accuracy of information provided herein.

94.040

Map Title

6/04/2018

Printed on : 

Legend

Parcels

Roads

World Imagery

Low Resolution 15m Imagery

High Resolution 60cm Imagery

High Resolution 30cm Imagery

Citations


	10.c & d.pdf
	ADP3AA0.tmp
	Title 13 PUBLIC SERVICES
	13.1.1.7 Rates and Charges.


	13.g.pdf
	TO:
	TOWN COUNCIL 

	FROM:
	PLANNING BOARD

	SUBJECT:
	PARKS COMMISSION REQUEST TO FUND FORT FOSTER INVASIVE SPECIES MANAGEMENT PLAN – PHASE 1

	DATE:
	JUNE 4, 2018

	CC:
	ADPC3A1.tmp
	PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



